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1. Instructions for Participating in the RFP 
 

Respondent(s) should complete this RFP in its entirety and refer any questions to Sukie Yang via e-mail 

in accordance with the instructions contained herein. 

 

Contact:  Sukie Yang      

Company:  CenterPoint Energy Service Company, LLC  

Email:   qian.yang@centerpointenergy.com     

Phone:  (713) 207 - 7185       

    

This Request for Proposal is not an offer to enter into an agreement with any party, but rather a request 

to receive proposals from respondents interested in providing the services specified herein. CenterPoint 

Energy Service Company, LLC (the “Company”) reserves the right to reject any proposal, in whole or in 

part, and/or to enter into agreements to provide services with any respondent. This request will be 

issued to a limited selection of vendors.  

 

The Company reserves the right to choose any respondent and/or award to one or more respondents 

based on the Company’s interest. All costs associated with developing or submitting a proposal in 

response to this RFP, or to provide oral or written clarification of its content, shall be borne by the 

Respondent. The Company assumes no responsibility for such costs.  By submitting an RFP, the 

submitting firm agrees to these stipulations.  

 

Any RFP recipients who do not wish to respond are asked to provide a response to that effect to the 

recipient as soon as possible. All RFP responses are limited to twenty-five (25) pages, not including 

appendices.  

 

An electronic version of your final RFP response must be submitted no later than 3:00 pm, CST Friday, 

September 16th, 2022. The Company reserves the right to reject proposals received after the due date.  

Electronic proposals include those prepared in Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF. Hard-copy submissions 

will be accepted, but are not necessary to be provided.   

 

Any inquiries relating to this RFP must be submitted via email to the above-mentioned recipient by 3:00 

pm CST Friday, August 19th, 2022. After this scheduled timeframe, no questions may be asked pertaining 

to this RFP. Soliciting information from the Company employees or business partners, whether 

associated with this RFP directly or not, may result in disqualification. 



 

2. RFP Timeline 
 

• RFP Invitation August 5, 2022 

• RFP Question Submission August 19, 2022 

• Response to RFP Questions August 26, 2022 

• Submission of RFP September 16, 2022 

• Contract Award October 2022 

• Contract Start Date January 2023 

 

3. Proposal Background & Objective 

 
Headquartered in Houston, Texas CenterPoint Energy, Inc. (CNP) is an energy delivery company with 

electric transmission and distribution, power generation and natural gas distribution operations that 

serve more than 7 million metered customers in Indiana, Louisiana, Minnesota, Mississippi, Ohio and 

Texas.  With approximately 8,900 employees, CenterPoint Energy and its predecessor companies have 

been in business for more than 150 years. Information regarding current Energy Efficiency programs 

offered by CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC (“CenterPoint Houston”) is located at 

www.centerpointefficiency.com. CenterPoint Houston’s most recent Energy Plan and Report filing to the 

Public Utility Commission of Texas (“PUCT”) is located here: 

http://www.texasefficiency.com/index.php/regulatory-filings/centerpoint. 

 

CenterPoint Houston provides funding for the implementation of energy efficiency (EE) projects and 

measures in accordance with the PUCT Substantive Rule § 25.181.  Energy efficiency measures and 

projects adhere to the specifications defined in the current Texas Reference Manual (TRM) Version 9.0.   

Project Purpose 

CenterPoint Houston is seeking a qualified vendor to assist in the implementation of a combined 

Commercial Market Transformation Program (C-MTP). The new C-MTP program is a consolidation of 

three existing programs: Data Center Energy Efficiency Program (DCEEP), Healthcare Energy Efficiency 

Program (HEEP) and Schools Conserving Resources (SCORE).   

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.centerpointenergy.com/en-us/residential/save-energy-money/electric-efficiency-programs/all-electric-efficiency-programs?sa=ho
http://www.texasefficiency.com/index.php/regulatory-filings/centerpoint


4. Scope of Work 
 

The intent of the new combined C-MTP Request for Proposal (RFP) is to streamline customer 

participation, align program goals with PUCT regulatory filings, and to achieve economies of scale by 

aggregating three separate MTP programs into one program.  Each target customer sector of the C-MTP 

program will have a defined budget and energy savings goal, but there will only be one customer-facing 

program. Program budget dollars may be transferred across customer segments as necessary to meet 

targeted goals with approval from the Company’s C-MTP program manager and/or management as 

needed. In the first program year, the commercial customer segments are generally defined as: 

• Data Centers: any space used to house IT systems infrastructure, such as network 
operations centers, server rooms, enterprise data centers and co-location facilities.  

• Schools: K-12 public schools, private schools, higher education  

• Government: municipalities, cities, counties, and select state agencies  

• Not-For-Profit: charities, faith-based, and community organizations  

• Healthcare: hospitals, clinics, assisted living facilities, laboratories, and medical office 
buildings.  

The provided customer types are for planning purposes and is intentionally not exhaustive – additional 

facility types and other underserved commercial customer segments are eligible for participation.   The 

vendor must utilize CenterPoint Houston’s existing Vision DSM database, which tracks savings, incentive 

expenditures and customer data for all EE programs. All program and individual project materials will be 

required to be maintained in the Company’s database in real-time. At a minimum, this includes all 

project related correspondence, spreadsheets, engineering calculations, photos, inspection records and 

invoicing. Additionally, the vendor should have a thorough knowledge of the current Texas TRM and 

Evaluation, Measurement, and Verification (EM&V) requirements. 

 

The selected vendor will have the benefit of leveraging established relationships with existing program 

participants and an existing project pipeline across multiple customer segments.  Additional marketing 

and outreach will be required to obtain new participants, engage with existing participants, and 

reconnect past participants within each of the C-MTP program components.  Marketing materials, 

website support, and social media content will be required to support the Company’s energy efficiency 

marketing efforts.  

 

The C-MTP program will require pre and post inspections to satisfy EM&V requirements. These 

inspections are expected to be primarily performed by the CenterPoint Houston inspection team. In 

certain circumstances the vendor may perform site inspections when the Company’s inspectors are not 

qualified or unavailable.   In either case, the vendor should be prepared to support inspection efforts. 

Additionally, please identify any sub-contractors you plan to employ to support the C-MTP program. 

 



The vendor’s efforts should assist in executing on CenterPoint Houston’s goal of becoming the “energy 

experts” for the greater Houston region and further enhance the Company’s status as a trusted 

community partner in managing energy resources.  The budget for Program Year 2023 will be 

$5,900,000, with a desire to increase expenditures as required. CenterPoint Houston is seeking a 

response, in numerical order, to each section of the following table. References to table section 

numbers should be included in the response.  

 

Table 1: Key Objectives & Requirements 

 
 

1.1 

Provide a holistic 3-year plan for implementing the C-MTP program. This includes:  
• Vision for scope of the program components for each year, including how each 
component can complement the other programs in the portfolio  

• Laying out current relationships with industry and local partners and potential 
participants; roadmap to connect to new partners and community organizations 

• Successful facilitation of each component of the program, including a discussion 
on potential barriers and how to overcome them 

 
 

1.2 

Provide a plan utilizing the program to deliver customer trust and positive brand 
recognition of CenterPoint Energy among the community. This includes, but is not limited 
to: 

• Improving the ability of CenterPoint Energy to execute on the goal of becoming 
the “energy experts” in the Houston area 

• Continuation of the positive relationships that have been built with the many 
private businesses, school districts and local governments in the CenterPoint 
Energy territory 

 
 

1.3 

Provide expected marketing outreach and program promotion strategies to the following 
target audiences: 

• Healthcare entities  

• Data Centers 

• Non-profit entities 

• Schools 

• Governments 
 
 

1.4 

Provide expected incentive amount and savings per measure per year. Utilize the 
following information to calculate the program cost effectiveness per year:  

• Avoided Cost $/kW:  $80  
• Avoided Cost $/kWh:  $0.05084    
• Discount Rate:  6.51%   
• Inflation Rate:  2%  

 
 

1.5 

Provide a plan to verify and document savings in compliance with the Texas Technical 
Reference Manual. Provide anticipated new measure categories and process to have 
them approved by EM&V team.  

 
1.6 

Provide a list of proposed personnel needed to implement this program, including those 
local to CenterPoint Energy’s territory 



5. Proposal Pricing & Fees 
 

The C-MTP program will be structured as a “Pay-for-Performance” contract with an allowance for a 

monthly fixed fee. Vendors should briefly summarize their proposed base fixed fee, pay-for-

performance allowance and rate, and any proposed “bonus” compensation for exceeding program 

goals. The pricing proposal must include the following:  

1. Indicative rates for all services provided, inclusive of all taxes or other such charges;  
2. A clear explanation of how work is charged, in a table format;  
3. Hourly rates of the key individuals responsible for the performance of these services;  
4. Start-up costs, yearly price escalators, and;  

5. Your organization’s value proposition  

 
Respondents are encouraged to include information on any financial or commercial incentives that may 

be beneficial to the Company. The contract term will be three (3) years in length. Prices and terms of the 

proposal as stated must be valid for the length of the resulting contract. All pricing submitted will be 

considered firm and fixed unless otherwise indicated in your response.  

Proposals will be considered irrevocable for a period of not less than 120 days following the proposal 

submittal date.  

Table 2: Proposal Pricing Table 
 

Key Employee Costs, total per year $ 

Anticipated Marketing Spend, per 
year 

$ 

Anticipated Start-up Costs $ 
Yearly Price Escalator % 

  

Fixed Implementation Cost, monthly $ 
$/kW $/kW 

$/kWh $/kWh 

 

Table 3: Yearly Pricing Table 
 

Program Year 2023 2024 2025 

Base Fixed Fee    

Pay-For-Performance    

Bonus*    

Total    

 

 



6. Evaluation Criteria 
 

Proposals will be evaluated based on the ability of the proposed solution to meet the needs of 

CenterPoint Houston’s Energy Efficiency Department, the value relative to other solutions, and on the 

evaluation criteria listed below.  

Designated Energy Efficiency staff and/or selected advisors will evaluate the submitted proposals 

utilizing a scoring matrix. The Company may seek clarification from Respondents regarding any 

information contained within the respondent’s proposal. Final scores for each Respondent will reflect a 

consensus of the evaluations. 

Any attempt by a Respondent to contact a member of CenterPoint Houston’s Energy Efficiency 

Department staff or selected advisors about this specific RFP, to gain knowledge or an advantage, may 

result in disqualification of Respondent. Any false information contained in the RFP Response may 

disqualify Respondent from further consideration. 

Please provide at least two (2) references, which includes contact information, in an appendix to the 

proposal. 

 

Table 4: Key Evaluation Criteria 
 

Category  Description  

Qualifications & 
Experience  

Have you implemented these programs in the past? What is your success rate for 
programs that you have implemented?  

Cost Effectiveness  Is the proposal cost-effective? What savings are you able to provide?  

Integration with 
existing database  

Will your solution utilize or integrate with our tracking system, Vision DSM?  

Inspections  How are savings verified? Are there inspections involved?  

Outreach  What is your existing network of retailers? How will you onboard new partners?  

Support  What resources are available locally? What institutional resources are available?  

MWBE   Do you have an MWBE certification and/or participation?  

Other  Other factors that may be relevant as determined by CenterPoint Energy  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



7. Supplier Diversity Guidelines 
 

CenterPoint Energy recognizes the importance of Minority and Women-owned Business Enterprises 

(MWBE) to the economies of the nation, the state, and the communities it serves, as well as the 

corporation itself. Therefore, we are committed to pursuing business relationships with such enterprises 

and using innovative approaches designed to continually improve business opportunities. Our 

commitment is not philanthropic—the relationships we are seeking must meet the test of providing 

value both to the Company and to the minority and women-owned business enterprises.  Each 

Respondent shall provide their M/WBE status and shall provide information regarding any M/WBE 

participation.  A copy of the Supplier Diversity Policy Statement is attached below.  For further 

information, visit the website www.CenterPointEnergy.com. 

 

Attachment A 

Supplier Diversity 

Policy Statement and Guidelines.docx
 

 

http://www.centerpointenergy.com./

